

# **Attendance Policy**

This is a Trust Policy – details specific to individual academies and their procedures are added by the Academy in *Appendix A*.

(For a copy of the policy for a specific academy which includes Appendix A – see individual academy websites).

Date	Revision & Amendment Details	By Whom
February 2023	Review and Approval	Central Executive



### **CONTENTS**

1	Introduction	3
2	Purpose	3
2.1	Culture and Environment	3
2.2	Community	4
3	Legislation and Statutory Requirements	5
4	Roles and Responsibilities	5
4.1	Academy Governance Committee (AGC)	5
4.2	Headteacher	5
4.3	Teachers and Staff	6
4.4	Parents / Carers	7
4.5	Pupils	7
5	Attendance Expectations	7
6	Attendance Management and Improvement	8
6.1	Prevention, Early Intervention and Targeted Support Flow Chart	8
6.2	Day to Day Process for Managing Attendance	9
6.3	Poor Attendance / Persistent Absence	10
6. <sup>4</sup>	Process for Managing and Reducing Persistent and Severe Absence Targeted and Formal Support Individual Pupils and Pupil Cohorts with Specific Needs	ce – 11 11
8	Promoting and Incentivising Good Attendance	12
9	Legal Sanctions – Unauthorised Absence	12
10	Monitoring and Evaluating Attendance	13
10.	Academy Level	13
10.	Trust Level	13
11	Reintegration	14
12	Monitoring Arrangements of the Policy	14
13	Links to Other Policies	14
Apper	x A1 – Academy Specific Information	15
Apper	x B1 – Process to be Followed When Absence Falls below Certain Leve	ls 16
Apper	x B2 – Formal Support and Legal Intervention Flow Chart	17



### 1. Introduction

Peterborough Diocese Education Trust's (the Trust) vision is:

'For every child, within our Trust, to experience an excellent education and to realise their Godgiven potential to flourish.'

'The foundation of securing good attendance is that school is a calm, orderly, safe, and supportive environment where all pupils want to be and are keen and ready to learn.'

In order to achieve our vision, children need to be consistently and regularly attending their academy. Therefore, underpinned by our Christian values, the Trust is committed to creating a culture of calm, orderly, safe and supportive environments in our academies where all pupils want to be and are keen and ready to learn. It is also recognised that for the most vulnerable pupils, regular attendance is also an important protective factor and the best opportunity for needs to be identified and support provided. Such a culture will ensure our pupils get the most out of their academy experience, including their attainment, wellbeing and wider life chances.

For the purpose of this policy, a parent means:

- All natural parents, whether they are married or not
- Any person who has parental responsibility for a child or young person, and
- Any person who has care of a child or young person (i.e. lives with and looks after the child).

This policy also apples to children of non-statutory school age who are on the roll of the academy.

This policy will be published on each academy's website and parents will be sent a copy of it with any initial information when pupils join the academy and reminded of it at the beginning of each academy year and when it is updated.

### 2. Purpose

This policy sets out the Trust's expectations and approach in relation to attendance and the improving of attendance across the Trust. The individual academy's approach to specific elements is set out in Academy Specific Information - *Appendix A*.

### 2.1 Culture and Environment

The policy is based on Prevention, Early Intervention, and Targeted Support as set out in 'Working Together to Improve School Attendance' (see flow chart attached at paragraph 6.1) and aims to ensure that each academy in the Trust:

- Consistently promotes the benefits of good / high attendance
- Sets high expectations for every pupil
- Communicates expectations clearly and consistently to pupils and parents
- Systematically analyses data to identify patterns to target their improvement efforts; and
- Works effectively with the local authority and other partners to overcome barriers to attendance.



### 2.2 Community

The Trust is committed to working together to improve attendance and this policy aims to ensure that the academy works collaboratively with local partners, pupils and parents to remove any barriers to attendance by building strong and trusting relationships and working together to put the right support in place.

The academy will work with other partners as set out in the flow chart below:

### **Expect**

Aspire to high standards of attendance from all pupils and parents and build a culture where all can, and want to, be in school and ready to learn by prioritising attendance improvement across the school.

#### **Monitor**

Rigorously use attendance data to identify patterns of poor attendance (at individual and cohort level) as soon as possible so all parties can work together to resolve them before they become entrenched.

### **Listen and Understand**

When a pattern is spotted, discuss with pupils and parents to listen to understand barriers to attendance and agree how all partners can work together to resolve them.

### **Facilitate Support**

Remove barriers in school and help pupils and parents to access the support they need to overcome the barriers outside of school. This might include an early help or whole family plan where absence is a symptom of wider issues.

### **Formalise Support**

Where absence persists and voluntary support is not working or not being engaged with, partners should work together to explain the consequences clearly and ensure support is also in place to enable families to respond. Depending on the circumstances this may include formalising support through a parenting contract or education supervision order.

### **Enforce**

Where all other avenues have been exhausted and support is not working or not being engaged with, enforce attendance through statutory intervention or prosecution to protect the pupil's right to an education.

Reference: Working together to improve school attendance (publishing.service.gov.uk) page 8, paragraph 13



### 3. Legislation and Statutory Requirements

The law entitles every child of compulsory school age to an efficient, full-time education suitable to their age, aptitude, and any special educational need they may have. It is the legal responsibility of every parent to make sure their child receives that education either by attendance at an academy or by education otherwise than at an academy.

Where parents decide to have their child registered an academy, they have an additional legal duty to ensure their child attends that academy regularly. This means their child must attend every day that the academy is open, except in a small number of allowable circumstances such as being too ill to attend or being given permission for an absence in advance from the academy.

This policy meets the requirements of the <u>working together to improve school attendance</u> from the Department for Education (DfE), and refers to the DfE's statutory guidance on <u>school attendance</u> <u>parental responsibility measures</u>. These documents are drawn from the following legislation setting out the legal powers and duties that govern school / academy attendance:

- Part 6 of The Education Act 1996
- Part 3 of The Education Act 2002
- Part 7 of The Education and Inspections Act 2006
- The Education (Pupil Registration) (England) Regulations 2006 (and 2010, 2011, 2013, 2016 amendments)
- The Education (Penalty Notices) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2013.

This policy also refers to the <u>DfE's guidance on the school census</u>, which explains the persistent absence threshold.

This policy complies with the Trust's funding agreement and articles of association.

### 4. Roles and Responsibilities

### 4.1 Academy Governance Committees (AGCs)

AGCs are responsible for reviewing and approving, *Appendix A* to this policy.

### 4.2 The Headteacher

The Headteacher is responsible for:

- Leading the creation and reinforcement of the culture set out in this policy, ensuring it permeates through every aspect of academy life
- Implementing measures to secure good levels of attendance. These measures should aim to:
  - recognise the importance of good attendance and, alongside good behaviour, make it a central part of the academy's vision, values, ethos, and day to day life



- recognise the interplay between attendance and wider academy improvement efforts, building it into strategies for attainment, behaviour, bullying, special educational needs support, supporting pupils with medical conditions or disabilities, safeguarding, wellbeing, and support for disadvantaged pupils (including use of pupil premium)
- recognise improving attendance is an academy leadership issue and have a designated senior leader with overall responsibility for championing and improving attendance in the academy including:
  - offering a clear vision for attendance improvement
  - evaluating and monitoring expectations and processes
  - oversight of data analysis
  - communicating messages to pupils and parents
  - making sure all teaching and non-teaching staff know the importance of good attendance, are consistent in their communication with pupils and parents, and receive the training and professional development they need
  - making sure attendance support and improvement is appropriately resourced, including where applicable through effective use of pupil premium funding
  - setting high expectations for the attendance and punctuality of all pupils and communicating these regularly to pupils and parents through all available channels. In doing so, helping parents to understand what is expected of them and why attendance is important to their child's attainment, wellbeing, and wider development. It should also include clarity on the short and long-term consequences of poor attendance
  - visibly demonstrating the benefits of good attendance throughout academy life; this may include in displays, collective worship or in registration periods. Where used sensitively and without discrimination, this may also include praising and rewarding improvements in attendance – see section 8
  - recognising that attendance is never 'solved' and is a continuous process by regularly reviewing and updating messages, processes, and strategies; and
  - recognising children missing education can act as a vital warning sign to a range of safeguarding issues including neglect, sexual abuse and child sexual and criminal exploitation
- Reviewing *Appendix A* of this policy to ensure it reflects their individual academy's approach to attendance, and for recommending approval of *Appendix A* to the AGC.

### 4.3 Teachers and Staff

### All staff should understand:

- The importance of good attendance and that absence is almost always a symptom of wider circumstances
- The law and requirements of schools / academies including on the keeping of registers
- The academy's / Trusts' strategies and procedures for tracking, following up and improving attendance
- The processes for working with other partners to provide more intensive support to pupils who need it.



Staff with a specified attendance function in their role, including administrative, pastoral or family support staff and senior leaders should also:

- Have the necessary skills to:
  - o interpret and analyse attendance data
  - o support pupils to overcome commonly seen barriers to attendance.

### 4.4 Parents / Carers

### Parents / Carers are expected to:

- Ensure their child attends on time every day the academy is open
- Notify the academy before the time stated in Appendix A when their child has to be unexpectedly
  absent (e.g. sickness; unplanned absence) and on each subsequent day of absence and advise
  when they are expected to return
- Only request leave of absence in exceptional circumstances and do so in advance
- Book any medical appointments around the academy day where possible
- Provide the academy with more than one emergency contact number for their child
- If their child is at risk of becoming persistently absent:
  - o work with the academy and local authority to help them understand their child's barriers to attendance; and
  - o proactively engage with the support offered to prevent the need for more formal support
- If their child is persistently / severely absent:
  - o work with the academy and local authority to help them understand their child's barriers to attendance; and
  - o proactively engage with the formal support offered including any parenting contract or voluntary early help plan to prevent the need for legal intervention.

### 4.5 Pupils

### Pupils are expected to:

• Attend the academy every day on time.

### 5. Attendance Expectations

High standards of attendance and punctuality are expected from all pupils and it is the expectation that these are supported by parents. The academy will proactively manage (as set out below) and endeavour to improve attendance across the academy community.



### 6. Attendance Management and Improvement

### 6.1 Prevention, Early Intervention, and Targeted Support Flow Chart

The following flow chart provides a summary of effective attendance management and improvement.

All Pupils Develop good attendance patterns through effective whole school approach to attendance (including leadership, ethos and **Prevention** of poor attendance systems and processes) through good whole school attendance management **Pupils at Risk or Poor Attendance** Use attendance and absence data rigorously to support pupils with increasing levels of absence, arriving at school late or taking leave in term time without permission before it becomes a regular pattern **Pupils with Poor Attendance** Intervene as early as possible and **Early Intervention** to reduce agree an action plan for pupils with absence before it becomes habitual high levels of absence and those demonstrating growing disengagement with school **Persistently and Severely Absent Pupils** Put additional targeted Targeted reengagement of support in place, where necessary persistent and severely absent working with partners, and agree a pupils joint approach with local authorities for all severely absent pupils

Reference: Working together to improve school attendance (publishing.service.gov.uk) page 33



### 6.2 Day to Day Process for Managing Attendance

### • Contact Details of Academy Staff in Relation to Attendance:

Information and contact details of the staff who:

- o Parents should contact about attendance on a day-to-day basis
- o Parents should contact for more detailed support on attendance
- o In the academy is responsible for the strategic approach to attendance can be found in *Appendix A*.

### • Admission and Attendance Registers:

- Academies must accurately complete admission and attendance registers. (Full details on keeping admission registers and attendance registers can be found in <u>Working together to</u> <u>improve school attendance</u> – sections 7 and 8 respectively)
- Attendance registers will be taken at the start of each morning session of each day and once at the beginning of each afternoon session.

### • Punctuality and Lateness:

- The start of the academy's morning session is as set out in Appendix A
- The attendance register will close 30 minutes after the start of the academy's morning session. Any pupil arriving during this 30 minute period will be recorded in the attendance register with code L
- Any pupil attending after close of the register will be considered as unauthorised and marked in the attendance register with code U for that session (i.e. for the full morning session).

For details of the individual academy's procedures for managing and reducing lateness – see Appendix A.

### Unplanned Absence:

- Parents must notify the academy of the reason for the absence on the first day of an unplanned absence (e.g. sickness) by the time specified in *Appendix A* or as soon as practically possible by calling the academy office. For details of specific procedures for an individual academy – *See Appendix A*
- Absence due to illness will be marked as authorised unless the academy has a genuine concern about the authenticity of the illness
- If the authenticity of the illness is in doubt, the academy may ask the parents to provide medical evidence, such as a doctor's note, prescription, appointment card or other appropriate form of evidence. They will not ask for medical evidence unnecessarily
- o If the academy is not satisfied about the authenticity of the illness, the absence will be recorded as unauthorised and parents will be notified of this in advance.

### • Process for Dealing with Unexplained Absence:

• The academy's day to day processes for managing unexplained absence, for example first day calling and follow up can be found in *Appendix A*.

### • Process for requesting leave of absence:

 Only exceptional circumstances warrant a leave of absence. Academies should consider each application individually taking into account the specific facts and circumstances and relevant background context behind the request



- o If a leave of absence is granted, it is for the headteacher to determine the length of the time the pupil can be away from the academy
- As headteachers should only grant leaves of absence in exceptional circumstances it is very unlikely a leave of absence will be granted for the purposes of a family holiday

For details of an individual academy's process for requesting leave of absence – see Appendix A.

### • Dentist / Medical appointments:

 The authorisation of dentist /medical appointments within the school day are at the Headteacher's discretion and the expectation is that evidence of such appointments is provided prior to the appointment except for those pupils where their attendance is below 90%, when evidence of appointments must be provided.

### • Flexi- Schooling:

The responsibility for a child receiving a full-time education while they are of statutory school age lies with the parents. When parents educate a child partly at school and partly at home or elsewhere, as an expression of parental preference, this is called flexi-schooling. This can be a long-term arrangement or a short-term measure for a particular reason. Flexi-schooling is a legal option provided that the headteacher at the academy concerned agrees to the arrangement.

For further details – see the Trust's Flexi-Schooling Policy.

### 6.3 Process for Managing and Reducing Poor Attendance / Persistent Absence

- Attendance data will be monitored and rigorously scrutinised regularly to identify poor attendance (at individual and cohort level) as soon as possible so all parties can work together to resolve any issues before they become entrenched
- In the event of an individual pupil's absence falling below 96% (calculated cumulatively) the process set out in *Appendix B1* will be followed
- In all cases when a pattern of poor attendance / persistent absence is identified, the academy will:
  - o discuss with pupils (if appropriate) and parents to listen to understand barriers to attendance and agree how all partners can work together to resolve them
  - endeavour to remove barriers and help pupils and parents to access the support they need to overcome any barriers outside of the academy. This might include an early help or whole family plan where absence is a symptom of wider issues
- Where absence persists and voluntary support is not working or not being engaged with:
  - o the academy will work with partners to explain to the parents the consequences clearly and ensure support is also in place to enable families to respond; and
  - o depending on the circumstances this may include formalising support through a parenting contract or education supervision order
- Where all other avenues have been exhausted and support is not working or not being engaged
  with, the academy will notify the local authority who may enforce attendance through statutory
  intervention or prosecution to protect the pupil's right to an education
- For information on formal support and statutory intervention see the chart at Appendix B2
- Home visits If as part of managing attendance a home visit is deemed necessary, this will only
  be undertaken following an appropriate risk assessment and will never be conducted by a lone
  member of staff.



## 6.4 Process for Managing and Reducing Persistent and Severe Absence – Targeted and Formal Support

Where absence escalates and pupils miss 10% or more of school / academy (equivalent to 1 day or more a fortnight across a full academy year), the academy will work with the local authority to put additional targeted support in place to remove any barriers to attendance and reengage these pupils. In doing so, the academy should sensitively consider some of the reasons for absence and understand the importance of the academy as a place of safety and support for children who might be facing difficulties, rather than reaching immediately for punitive approaches.

Particular focus will be given to pupils who are absent from the academy more than they are present (those missing 50% or more of school / academy). These severely absent pupils may find it more difficult to be in the academy or face bigger barriers to their regular attendance and as such are likely to need more intensive support across a range of partners. The academy will therefore work with all relevant services to prioritise them. All partners should work together to make this group the top priority for support – this may include specific support with attendance or a whole family plan, but it may also include consideration for an education, health and care plan or an alternative form of educational provision where necessary to overcome the barriers to being in the academy.

### 7. Individual Pupils and Pupil Cohorts with Specific Needs

Some pupils face greater barriers to attendance than their peers. These can include pupils who suffer from long term medical conditions or who have special educational needs and disabilities. Their right to an education is the same as any other pupil and therefore the attendance ambition for these pupils should be the same as they are for any other pupil. However, in working with their parents to improve attendance, the academy will be mindful of the barriers these pupils face and put additional support in place where necessary to help them access their full-time education. This will include:

- Having sensitive conversations and developing good support for pupils with physical or mental health conditions. For example, making reasonable adjustments where a pupil has a disability or putting in place an individual healthcare plan where needed
- Considering whether additional support from external partners (including the local authority or health services) would be appropriate, making referrals in a timely manner and working together with those services to deliver any subsequent support
- Working with parents to develop specific support approaches for attendance for pupils with special educational needs and disabilities, including, where applicable, ensuring the provision outlined in the pupil's education, health and care plan is accessed
- Working with families to help support routines where school transport is regularly being missed
- Working with other partners to encourage the scheduling of additional support interventions or medical appointments outside of the main school day
- Establishing strategies for removing the in-school barriers these pupils face, including considering support or reasonable adjustments for uniform, transport, routines and lunchtime arrangements
- Ensuring joined up pastoral care is in place where needed
- Considering whether a time-limited phased return to the academy would be appropriate, for example for those affected by anxiety about academy attendance



Ensuring data is regularly monitored for these groups including at Trust Board / Committee
meetings and in Targeting Support Meetings with the local authority so that additional support
from other partners is accessed where necessary.

Pupils with long term illnesses or other health needs may need additional support to continue their education, such as alternative provision provided by the local authority.

In all cases, academies should be sensitive and avoid stigmatising pupils and parents. They should talk to pupils and parents and understand how they feel and what they think would help improve their attendance to develop individual approaches that meet an individual pupil's specific needs.

### 8. Promoting and Incentivising Good Attendance

Good attendance is a learned behaviour. It is not a discrete piece of work but rather it is an integral part of the academy's ethos and culture. Therefore:

- The academy will visibly demonstrate the benefits of good attendance throughout school life. This may include in displays, collective worship or in registration periods
- Where used sensitively and without discrimination, the academy will utilise praising and rewarding improvements in attendance at year group or class-based level (e.g. weekly rewards for best attendance). In order to avoid any possible discrimination, the expectation is that there will not be individual rewards.

Details of ways the academy promotes and incentivises good attendance can be found in *Appendix A*.

### 9. Legal Sanctions – Unauthorised Absence

- The local authority can fine parents for the unauthorised absence of their child from the academy, where the child is of compulsory school age
- If issued with a fine, or penalty notice, each parent must pay £60 within 21 days or £120 within 28 days. The payment must be made directly to the local authority
- The decision on whether or not to issue a penalty notice may take into account:
  - o the number of unauthorised absences occurring within a rolling academic year
  - one-off instances of irregular attendance, such as holidays taken in term time without permission
  - o where an excluded pupil is found in a public place during academy hours without a justifiable reason
- If the payment has not been made after 28 days, the local authority can decide whether to prosecute or withdraw the notice.



### 10. Monitoring and Evaluating Attendance

### 10.1 Academy Level

The academy will:

- Regularly monitor and analyse attendance (including punctuality) and absence data to identify
  patterns and trends and individual pupils, cohorts and groups that require support with their
  attendance and put effective strategies in place
- Use this analysis to provide regular attendance reports to class teachers and to leaders (including any special educational needs coordinators, designated safeguarding leads and pupil premium leads)
- Identify the pupils who need support and focus staff efforts on developing targeted actions for those cases and Deliver intervention and support in a targeted way to identified pupils and families
- Conduct thorough analysis of half-termly, termly, and full year data to identify patterns and trends. This should include analysis of pupils and cohorts and identifying patterns in uses of certain codes and days of poor attendance. The academy should decide which cohorts of pupils should be included in their data analysis based on their context and academy population. This may include: boys and girls, year groups, pupils with special educational needs or disabilities, pupils with a social worker or who are looked-after by the local authority, pupils eligible for free school meals, and any pupils from backgrounds (including ethnicities, religions or beliefs, or sexual orientations where applicable) in the academy community that have, or have historically had, lower attendance than their peers
- Benchmark their attendance data (at whole academy, year group and cohort level) against Trust, local/regional, and national levels to identify areas of focus for improvement
- Devise specific strategies to address areas of poor attendance identified through data. This may, for example, include pupils in a year group with higher-than-average absence or for pupils eligible for free school meals if their attendance falls behind that of their more advantaged peers
- Monitor in the data the impact of academy wide attendance efforts, including any specific strategies implemented. The findings should then be used to evaluate approaches or inform future strategies
- Provide data and reports to support the work of the Trust Board and to those with specific delegated responsibilities for monitoring attendance in the Trust i.e. Academy Improvement Officers.

### 10.2 Trust Level

The Trust recognises the importance of academy attendance and will:

- Promote it across the academies ethos and policies
- Ensure academy leaders fulfil expectations and statutory duties
- Regularly review and monitor attendance data, identify, discuss, and challenge trends (to identify
  common issues and barriers), and help academy leaders focus improvement efforts on the
  individual pupils or cohorts who need it most
- For academies that are struggling with their attendance, work with academy leaders to develop a
  comprehensive attendance action plan to improve attendance which is evaluated and reviewed
  regularly. This may form part of the academy's Academy Improvement Plan and may not need to
  be a separate document



• Share effective practice on attendance management and improvement across academies.

### 11. Reintegration

- The academy will support pupils back into the academy following a lengthy or unavoidable period of absence and provide support to build confidence and bridge gaps
- Following a period of prolonged absence, the academy may carry out a phased reintegration for a pupil, but this should not exceed two weeks.

### 12. Monitoring Arrangements of the Policy

This Attendance Policy will be reviewed by the Trust (and *Appendix A* by the Headteacher and AGC) every year.

### 13. Links with Other Policies

This attendance policy is linked to the following policies:

- Behaviour Policy
- Exclusions Policy
- Safeguarding / Child Protection Policy
- SEND Policy
- Supporting pupils with medical conditions Policy
- Equalities Statement.



## **Appendix A - Academy Specific Information**

Name of Academy / School:	Cottingham CofE Primary School
Name of Person at the Academy with	Ashley Scott
Responsibility for Strategic Approach to	
Attendance:	
Name of Member of Staff to Contact regarding	Carolynn Southcombe/
Absence on a Day-to-Day Basis:	Jessica Pfadenhauer
Name of Member of Staff to Contact for More	Ashley Scott
Detailed Support on Attendance:	

#### **Vision and Values:**

In accordance with our vision and mission - with God's help we, care, build, follow and think lies at the heart of this policy. We believe that all people are made in the image of God and are unconditionally loved by God. Everyone is equal and we treat each other with dignity and respect. Our school is a place where everyone is able to flourish in a loving and hospitable community.

It is recognised that regular school attendance is essential if a child is to make the most of the educational opportunities available to them. Cottingham CofE Primary School is committed to monitoring and promoting the regular attendance of all our pupils. It is recognised that irregular attendance can seriously disrupt continuity of learning, undermine educational progress, impede a child's ability to develop friendship groups and can lead to lower attainment.

### Times:

Registration session	08:45
opens:	
Register closes:	09:00
Afternoon Session	13:05
start time:	

### **Promoting and Incentivising Good Attendance:**

In our academy we will aim to raise and maintain levels of attendance by:

- Promoting a positive and welcoming atmosphere in which the pupils feel safe, secure
  and valued. At Cottingham CofE, with God's help, we CARE for ourselves and each
  other. With God's help we BUILD strong and healthy relationships.
- Raising the awareness of the importance of a differentiated, stimulating, and relevant curriculum.
- Promoting opportunities to celebrate and reward pupil's successes and achievements.
- Raising the awareness of the importance of good attendance.
- Ensuring that attendance is monitored effectively and reasons for absences are recorded promptly and consistently.



- Ensuring that the children receive a broad, balanced and interesting curriculum, encouraging them to attend school.
- Providing regular opportunities to take part in extracurricular activity including sports and musical tuition for example.
- Providing regular attendance updates, shared with the community via the school's 'Fortnightly' newsletter.
- Throughout the year, several events are planned to encourage the attendance of children and their families.
- Funding to support family's attendance at wrap around care.
- Regular communication between school-home.

### **Process for Notification of Unplanned Absence:**

### **First Day Absence**

Parent/carer are asked to contact the school via the telephone on the first day of absence before 09.00 or sooner if possible. If the parent/carer have not made contact, then a member of the school office will phone them after 09.00. The information gathered will be recorded and the registers will be updated.

### **Third Day Absence**

If after 3 days, the child is still away and no reason has been provided nor any verbal communication has been had then a standard letter will be sent out requesting information about the absence from the parent/carer. Parent/carer will be asked to either write to the school or phone them with the details. If the school are concerned about the absence, they may contact a relevant service including the Education Entitlement Service in order to alert them to their concerns. This may happen before the third day if no contact with the parent/carer can be made. This absence could also be seen as a potential safeguarding concern and will be treated as such if necessary.

### **Continuing Absence**

If the period of absence continues then, in consultation with the Headteacher, a further letter will be sent and a possible home visit made by school staff with no prior notice given. The school may contact the Education Entitlement Service or other appropriate agencies to register concerns and consider action to be taken that could include a fine and/or criminal proceedings.

### Frequent/Persistent Absence

It is the responsibility of each teacher and the school office to be aware of and bring attention to, any emerging attendance concerns. In cases where a pupil begins to develop a pattern of absences, the school will try to resolve the problem with the parent/s. If this is unsuccessful the school may refer to the school Nurse if the problem appears to be a medical one. In other cases, the school will seek advice from the Education Entitlement Service and appropriate action may be taken.

It is important that on return from an absence that all pupils are made to feel welcome. At Cottingham CofE, with God's help, we CARE for ourselves and each other. With God's help we BUILD strong and healthy relationships.

### **Procedure for Dealing with Unexplained Absence (Also see above):**

The Headteacher will meet with the Office Administrator regularly (at least half termly) to discuss patterns of absences. Children's absences will be scrutinised and the reasons for absence clarified. If the Head teacher and Office Administrator are concerned about the



attendance then appropriate action will be taken, depending on circumstances. All class teachers will be involved in discussion re: individual pupils.

If a child is absent for 10 days and the school has no information regarding the absence and cannot contact the parent/carer then the school will contact Education Entitlement Service and log the child as missing in education.

### **Procedure for Lateness:**

Morning registration will take place at the start of school at 09.00am prompt. The registers will remain open until 9.15 unless noted otherwise due to adverse weather conditions, traffic congestion, and lateness of transport for example. [DFES guidance suggests a maximum of 30 minutes but schools can choose to use a shorter period.] Any pupil arriving after this time will be marked as having an unauthorised absence unless there is an acceptable explanation In cases for example, where the absence at registration was for attending an early morning medical appointment, the appropriate authorised absence code will be entered. The afternoon registration will be at 13.05 for the whole school. Any children absent for the morning session should attend registration at this time. The register will remain open until 13:15.

Pupils arriving after the start of school but before the end of the registration period will be treated for statistical purposes, as present, but will be coded as late before registers close. This will apply to all children who arrive in school after 08.55 and need to enter the school via the main office. The Mill Road entrance will be locked promptly at 08:55.

### **Procedure for Requesting Leave of Absence:**

Nationally, Government policy is that Headteachers may **NOT** grant leave of absence during term time unless there are exceptional circumstances. Schools are now expected to adopt a more robust and challenging response to requests for leave for such holidays. Parents **DO NOT** have a right to expect leave of absence for the purpose of a holiday during term time.

Permission for family holidays in term time will only be authorised in exceptional circumstances at the discretion of the Headteacher or where evidence has been provided by an employer that leave cannot be accommodated during the school holidays without significant consequence to the business. Application in these instances should be made to the Headteacher on the 'Holiday Form' which is available from the school office. Leave will certainly not be granted where it coincides with the start of the school year, SATs, or any other significant event in the school diary.

If parents/carer decide to arrange for their annual holiday during term time and the holiday is unauthorised by the Head Teacher, homework in the form of missed lessons will **NOT** be provided.

With God's help we CARE - BUILD - FOLLOW - THINK



# Appendix B1 – Process to be Followed When Attendance Falls Below Certain Levels

### Attendance below 96%

• At the Headteacher's discretion notification (via a letter or through an app) to be sent to parents informing them of concerns regarding level of absence and impact on learning.

### Attendance below 90%

- Letter to be sent to parents informing them of a high level of absence accompanied by request for a meeting.
- Attendance targets to be set at meeting.

### If attendance targets are not met:

- Letter to be sent to parents inviting them to a formal attendance meeting supported by LA Attendance Officer.
- Academy parenting contract to be put in place for 6 weeks.

If academy parenting contract does not sufficiently improve attendance and all other avenues have been exhausted:

• Proceed to 'Formal Support' – see flow chart at Appendix B2.



# Appendix B2 - Formal Support and Legal Intervention Flow Chart

As absence is so often a often a symptom of wider issues a family is facing, schools, trusts and local authorities should always work together with other local partners to understand the barriers to attendance and provide support. Where that is not successful, or is not engaged with, the law protects pupils' right to an education and provides a range of legal interventions to formalise attendance improvement efforts, and where all other avenues have been exhausted, enforce it through prosecuting parents. Attendance legal intervention can only be used for pupils of compulsory school age and decisions should be made on an individual case by case basis.

### Formal Support

A formal parenting contract agreed by the pupil, parent, school and / or local authority.

**Voluntary Support** 

access services of their own accord and / or a voluntary whole family

barriers to attendance.

Helping parents to

plan to tackle the

Progressing to a legally binding Education Supervision Order in the Family Court if there is non-engagement and deemed necessary.

## Statutory Children's Social Care Involvement

Where there are safeguarding concerns and an Education Supervision Order is not appropriate or has not been successful the case should be considered for a s.17 or s.47 statutory social care involvement.

### **Attendance Prosecution**

Where all other routes have failed or are not deemed appropriate, the case should be considered for attendance prosecution in the Magistrates Court (or a FPN for irregular attendance).

Reference: Working together to improve school attendance (publishing.service.gov.uk) page 34, section 6, paragraph 89